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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Ferro Alloys Corporation Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ferro Alloys Corporation Limited (“the
Company™). which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs). as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics® issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficieat and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thercon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so. consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section [34(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
& Nthanges in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally acceptesd in
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India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were aperating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143( 3)(1) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls,

* Evalvate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all refationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

]

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report, to the extent appiicable, that:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph i(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11{h);

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(i).

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 27 to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 45 to the financial statements:

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses:

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall. whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has cansed us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. Nodividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software(s) for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of record ing audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for afl relevant transactions
recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to
data in certain tables when using system administrator access rights as described in note XX
to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of accounting software(s).

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. |,LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICALFirm Registyarion Number: 301003E/E300005
AL R

per A_njay Bansal
Partner
Membership Number: 502243

UDIN: 24502243BKCEWM 1089

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: April 18, 2024
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Annexure | referred to in paragraph { under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date.

Re: Ferro Alloys Corporation Limited (‘the Company®)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets as reflected
in the financial statements.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

{¢) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements
included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company.

Certain title deeds of the immovable Properties, in the nature of freehold land & buildings, as indicated in
the below mentioned cases which were acquired pursuant to a Scheme of Amalgamation approved by
National Company Law Tribunal’s (NCLT) Order dated November 15, 2022, are not individually held in
the name of the Company, however the deed of merger has been registered by the Company on November
28, 2022. This matter has been disclosed in note 3 (¢) to the financial statements,

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024

() There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for helding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification by the management is reasonable and the coverage and procedure for such
verification is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were not
noticed in respect of such verification.

(b) As disclosed in note 13 and note 53 (vii) to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks and financial institutions during
the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The guarterly statements filed by the
Company with such banks and financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts of the
Company.

(iii) (a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee or
provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees. provided security and
granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, the requitement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(¢) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

R. Batliboi & Co. LeP, a ted Liabildy Fartnership eath LU Idenlity Mo, AAR 4294
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Bluck 3', 3rd Floar, Kalkata 700 016
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(d) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(#ii)(d) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(e) There were no leans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, related to the
manufacture of goods and generation of electricity and High Carbon Ferro Chorme. and are of the opinion
that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however,
made a detailed examination of the same,

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, duty of custom, , cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with
the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. According to the information
and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed dues in respect
of goods and services tax. provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax . duty of custom, , cess
and other statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable. The provisions relating (o sales tax, value added tax, excise duty and service
tax are not applicable to the Company.

(b} There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales-
tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute.

Note- Pursuant to the approval of the order by the Hon’ble NCLT and as per the terms o the resolution plan,
claims were not admitted by the Resolution Professional.

(viii)  The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or govermnment or
any government authority,

(¢) The company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. During the year,
the company has received the loan from its holding company Vedanta [id. amounting INR 125 crores for
growth capex purposes and has utilized the amount for the stated purpose.
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{d) The Company did not raise any short-term funds during the year hence, the requirement to report on clause
(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e} On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures.

{f} The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

{x) (a} The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public offer
(including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on ciause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially or
optionaily convertibie debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(x){(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xi} (a) No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud/ material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year,

{b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed
by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

{c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year
while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures,

(xii}  The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) & (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiit)  Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensutate with the size and nature of its business.

(b} The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under audit
have been considered by us.

(xv} The Company has not entered any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xvi)  The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to
the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a),(b).{c) & (d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xvii)  The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current vear and immediately preceding financial year.

(xviif) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on Clause 3(xviii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xix)

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 5 I{iv)_to the financial statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial stalements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

(xx) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred

to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to
sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matier has been disclosed in note 51(iii) to the financial
statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special

account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has
been disclosed in note S1(iii) to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountan
ICAI Firm Registratiof Number: 301003E/E300005

/“

\ 2

Per Ajay Bansal

Partner

Membership No: 502243

UDIN: 24502243BKCEWM 089

J

Place: Gurugram
Date: April 18, 2024
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ferro Alloys
Corporation Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (*ICAI™). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
stateiments,

S.K. Ballibol & LLP, a Limited Liability Fartnership with LLE denlity Mo, AAR 42949
Reqd. Office : 22, i Streel, Block #, 3rd Floor, Kolkata 7 e
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition. use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to futyre periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential compoenents of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registratiog Number: 30 1003E/E300005

WL

per.Ajay Bansal
Partner
Membership Number: 502243

UDIN: 24502243BKCEWM 1089

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: April 18, 2024




FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2024 Sevedanta (T
CIN-U452010R1955PLC008400
(¥ In Crores)
. As at As at
fagiiculars Note 31March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 3 934.25 735.17
Capital Work-in-Progress 4 (a) 54.46 21013
Assets held for Sale 4 (b) 0.01 0.01
Intangible Assets 5 11.40 7.41
Other Mining Assets 5 717 10.32
Stripping Assets 4 (B} 26.10 28.11
Financial Assets
Investment in Subsidiaries, Assaciates and Cthers 5] 0.36 0.39
Others Financial Assets 7 18.82 33.62
Deferred Tax Assets 8 63.45 71.54
Cther Non-Current Assets 9 154 66 20.03
Total Non- Current Assets 1,270.68 1,116.73
Current Assefs
Inventories 10 100.02 113.86
Financial Assets
Investment 6 12.56 -
Trade Receivables 1 41.65 28.05
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 4.99 4.02
Other Bank Balances 13 24.00 18.00
Loans 14 0.14 0.19
Derivatives 18 0.01 -
Other Financia! Assets 16 2.06 1.85
Current Tax Assets (Net) 17 4122 41,96
Other Current Assets 18 34.09 78.13
Totaf Current Assets 260.74 286.06
Total Assets 1,531.41 1,402.79
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 19 34.00 34.00
Other equity 20 1,045.54 1,025.58
Total Equity 1,078.54 1,058 58
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Baorrowings 21 (A) 125.00 22.03
Lease Liabilities 22 3.88 0.17
Provisions 24 (A} B8.15 7.97
Total Non-Current Liabilities 137.03 30.17
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 21 {B) 28.59 72.15
Lease Liabilities 22 1.27 0.60
Operational Buyers' Credit 23 9.28 12.68
Trade Payables 25
Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 32.74 11.73
Cthers 203.24 183.36
Derivatives 26 - 0.13
Other Financial Liabilites 27 25.43 23.33
Provisions 24 (B) 3.28 1.36
Other Current Liabilities 28 10.02 B.28
Total Current Liabilities 314.85 313.04
Total Liabilities 451.88 343.21
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,531.41 1,402.79

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
As per our repart on even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountant
(Al Firm's Regn. Ne.301003E { E300005)

&.‘au‘/

per Ajay Bansal
Partner

Place : Gurygram

Date - )2, H\ Y

—
Karan Kumar Kejriwal
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Bhadrak
Date : 18 April 2024

For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors

\ (-n.rd‘r-

R Narayanaswamy
Chief Executive Officer and

Direcior
Whole Time Director (DIN 00818169)
IN 19213819)
v

IKE S
n'I Sambit Kumar Sarangi

Company Secrefary

(ICSI Membership No.11105)




FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
CIN-U452010R1955PLC008400

== vedania

(¥ In Crores)

Year Ended Year Ended

i N
AifiEtilars it 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue
Revenue from Operations 29 815.85 773.56
Operating Income 30 3.48 478
Other Income 31 11.64 17.73
Total Income 830.97 796,07
Expenses
Cost of Materfals Consurmned 32 365.97 28714
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and work in Progress 33 {8.51) 3.49
Employee Benefits Expense 34 58.12 4595
Finance Costs 35 35.34 11.76
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 36 5476 43.61
Other Expenses 37 296.12 312.80
Total Expenses 801.80 684.75
Profit Before Exceptional Items and Tax 29.17 111.32
Net Exceptional Losses 38 {(0.25) 18.02
Profit Before Tax 29.41 93.30
Tax Expenses 39
Tax for Earlier Years - (113.50)
Deferred tax 8.44 (85.29)
Profit/{L.oss) for the period (A) 20.97 292.08
Other Comprehensive Income
ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (1.40) (0.83)
Fair Value of Investment 0.02 {0.03)
Income Tax an items that will not be reclassified to Profit and loss 0.36 0.21
Total Other Comprehensive income for the period (B) (1.02) (0.65)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (A + B) 19.95 291.44
Earnings per equity share of face value of ¥ 1/- each 40

Basic 0.62 8.59

Diluted 0.62 8.59

Chartered Accountantstf Chief Executive Officer and
(ICAl Firm's Regn,Mo.301003 / E300005) Whole Time Director
¥ “ADIN 10213819)
e e @{\fe p w
\_perAjay Bangal Karan Kumar Kejriwal
Partner Chief Financial Officer

g

UEAI Membership No.502243) &

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
As per our report on even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

! i !
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP Paritaj K é&’%‘na

Place : Guru‘gram Place : Bhadrak

Date :\3, g:.(‘-v?"ﬂ

Date : 18 April 2024

N

“ AR Narayanaswamy
Director
(DIN 00818169),

Sambit Kumar Sarangi
Company Secretary
{ICS| Membership No.11105)




FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED fvedants ¢ )
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
CIN-U452010R1955PLC008400
{¥ In Crores)
. Year Ended Year Ended
e Rarticulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A Cash fiows from operating activities
Net Profit after Prior Period ltems and before Tax 29.42 93.28
Adjustments For:
Interest Income (3.00) 4.31
Depreciation 54.76 43.61
Interest Expense 35.34 11.76
Gain on sale of current investment (0.49) -
Loss on sale of Fixed assets 0.86 -
Operating Cash Profit before Weorking Capital Changes 116.89 152.97
Movement in Working Capital:-
Increase in Trade Payables 40.89 112.33
Increase/(Decrease} in Other Current Liabilities 1.74 {18.37)
Increase in Other Current Financial Liabilities 0.84 27.58
Increase in Non Cuirent Financial Assets 14.81 3.38
Decrease in Provisions 0.68 4.68
{Increase)/Decrease in Other Non Current Assets (134.62) 13.46
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Financial Assets {6.06) 64.49
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories 13.84 (29.88)
{Increase} in Trade Receivables (13.60} (25.37)
Decrease in Other Current Assets 44.04 10.94
Cash Generated From/ (used in) operations 79.45 316.21
Less: Income Tax Paid (net of refunds) (0.74) B.25
Net Cash Generated From/ (used in) Operating Activities
before Extraordinary item 80.19 307.96
Net Cash Generated From/ (used in) Operating Activities(A) 80.19 307.96
B  Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
{Purchase) of property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress (98.00} (261.75)
Net proceeds of property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress 017 (0.36)
Interest received 2.89 (4.00)
Net movement in Investments {12.05) 0.08
Net Cash Generated from/ (Used in) Investing Activities (B) (106.99) (266.18)
C  Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Proceeds of Long Term Borrowings 106.68 (34.16)
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (43.57) -
Interest Expense Paid {35.34) {11.76)
Net Cash generated from/ (used in) Financing Activities (C) 27.77 (45.92)
Net Increasef{Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents { A+B+C}) 0.97 (4.14)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4.02 8.17
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 4.99 4.02

Note:-
The above cash flow has been prepared under "Indirect method”
Cash Flows.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
As per our report on even date

For §.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Charlered Accountants 4 =
(ICAi Firm's Regn.No,401003E / E300005)

G

L.pe(A’jay Bansal

Partrer
(ICAl Membership No.502243)

Place : Guru\gram

Date : 19 M\ww

as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS -7) Statement of

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors

ol
!L’A/,/ -
Pankaj Kumar Sharma Narayanaswamy
Chief Executive Officer and  Director
Whole Time Director (DIN 00818169}
Q' f;‘((DIN 10213819

KL 1™
Karan Kumar Kejriwal
Chief Financial Officer

Sambit Kumar Sarangi
Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No.11105)

Place : Bhadrak
Date : 18 April 2024




FERRO ALLQYS CORFORATION LIMITED == vedanta
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 MAR 2024
(a) Equity share capital
Mo of shares Amount
Equity shares of ¥ 1/ each 1ssued, subscribed and fully paid {Z In Crores) {¥ In Crores)
As at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023* 3400 3400
“There are no pror period errars for the years snded 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
{b) Other equity {¥ In Crares}
Reserves & Surplus Items of OCI
Remeasure
: . . 5 Fair value ment of
FESLEUISS Capital Reserve | General Reserve :;‘r:'l:‘:: E?;:ﬁr:;li‘:‘g’: of defined Total
investment| benefit
obligations
Bailance at 01 April 2022 1,161.37 192.00 (602.658) 277 0.06 {2.46) 751.08
Profit for the penod 2022-23 - - 292 09 - 292.09
Other comprehensive (losspincame for the year - - - - - {0 65) {0.65)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 28209 - - (0 65) 29145
Cansideration pa for purchasing additional 10% stake (16 92)
In subsidiary - - - - - (186.92)
Balance at 31 March 2023 1,161.37 192.00 (327.50} 277 0.06 {3.11) 1,025.59
Profit for the period 2023-24 - - 2097 - . 2097
Other comprehensive (loss)income for the year - - - - (1.02) (1.02)
Total comprehensive income for the year N - 2097 - - {102) 19.95
Balance at 31 March 2024 1,161.37 192.00 {306.53) 277 0.06 {4.13}) 1,045.56

See accompanying notes to financial statements
As per our report on even date

For S.R’.'_Balliboi & Co. ’L‘j’
Chartered Accountants
(FKCAl Firm's RegnyzﬁmDSEf E300005)

£ o
Jjay Bansal

Partner
QCA{ Membership No 502243)

"

Place Gurugram

Date  \g » \ ne WM

and on behalf of the Board of Directars

Chief Executive Officer and Whale Time Director
10213819)

KP/{ LU VO\,[
Karan Kumar Kejriwal -
Chisf Financial Officer

Place Bhadrak
Date 1B Apnl 2024

4

R Narayanaswamy
Director

Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No 11105)




FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED.

Notes Forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024 Tz vedanka

1 Corporate information

Ferro Alloys Corporation Limited referred to as “FACOR” or “the Company" is domiciled in India. The Company's registered office is at D.P
Nagar, Randia, Dist. Bhadrak, Odisha — 756135,

FACOR which is one of the India's largest producers and exporters of Ferro Alloys, an essential ingredient for manufacture of Steel and
Stainless Steel is also engaged in Chrome Ore exploration, mining, and beneficiation in the state of Odisha.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directers on 18 April 2024.

2.A Material Accounting Policies

This ncte pravides a list of material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.A.1 Basis of preparation

(i) The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) netified under the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division [l of Schedule (11
to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule N, as applicable to the financial statement

The financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company's functional currency, and all values are rounded to the
nearest crores (INR 00, 00,000) except when otherwise indicated.

(i)} Certain comparative figures appearing in these financial statements kave been regrouped andfor reclassified to better reflect the nature
of those items.

2.A.2 Basis of measurement
{i} The Firancial statements have been prepared an a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been
measured at fair value
* Property, plant and equipment at fair value.
* Certain financial assets and liabilities {including derivative instruments) measured at fair value
* Defined benefit fability/ assets: fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit ohligation
(i} The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it wilf cortinue to operate as a going concern.

2B Summary of material accounting policies information

A. Revenue recoghition

a) Sale of goods- The Company's revenue from contracts with customers is mainly from the sale of ferro alloy. Revenue from contracts
with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
cansideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenus is recognised net of
discounts, volume rebates, outgoing sales taxes/goods and service tax and other indirect taxes. Revenues from sale of by products are
included in revenue.

b} Interest income is recognized using the Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR") method.

¢} Export Incentives are recognised as per schemes specified in foreign Trade Policy, as amended from time to time on acerual basis

when right to receive is established and are accounted ta the extent there is no uncertainty about its ultimate collection.

d) Dividend income is recognised in the statement of prefit and loss only when the right to receive payment is established, provided it is
prabable that the economic bensfits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

B Property, plant, and equipment;

a} Mining properties and leases
When a decision is taken that a mining property is viable for commercial production (i.e., when the Company determines that the
mining property will provide sufficient and sustainable return relating to the risks and the Company decided to proceed with the mine
development), all further pre-production primary development expenditure other than that on land, buildings, plant, equipment and
capital werk in progress is capitalized as property, plant and equipment under the heading “Mining properties and leases” together with
any amount transferred from “Exploration and evaluation” assets. The costs of mining properties and leases, include the costs of
acquiring and developing minirg properties and mineral rights

The stripping cost incurred during the praduction phase of a surface mine is deferred to the extent the current pericef stripping cost
exceeds the average period stripping cost over the life of mine and recognised as an asset if such cost provides a benefit in terms of
improved access to ore in fuiure periods and certain criteria are met. When the benefit from the stripping costs are realised in the
current period, the stripping costs are accounted for as the cost of inventory. If the costs of inventory produced and the stripping activity
asset are not separately identifiable, a relevant production measure to be used to allocate the production stripping costs between the
inventory produced and the stripping activity asset. The Company uses the expecied volume of waste compared with the actual volume
of waste extracted for a given value of are/mineral production for the purpose of determining the cost of the stripping activity asset.

Deferred stripping costs are included in mining properties within property, plant and equipment and disclosed as a part of mining
properties. After initial recognition, the stripping activity asset is depreciated on a unit of production method over the expected useful life
of the identified compenent of the ore hody.

In circumstances where a mining property is abandened, the eumulative capitalised costs relating to the property are written off in the
period in which it occurs i.e. when the Company determines that the mining property will not provide sufficient and sustainable returns
relating to the risks and the Company decides not to proceed with the mine development.

Commercial reserves are proved and probable reserves as defined by the JORC' Code, "MCRC' code or 'SAMREC' Code. Changes jn
the commercial reserves affecting unit of production calculations are dealt with prospectively over the revised remaining reserves,




FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED,

Notes Forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024 == yedoanio

b)

c)

d)

Other property, plant and equipment

Items of other property, piant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss if any.
The cost of assets comprises of purchase price including import duties and nen-refundabte purchase taxes, and any directly aftributable
cost of bringing the assets to working condition and location for its intended use including borrowing cost and incidental expenditure
during censtruction incurred wp to the date when the assets are ready to use. It alse includes the initial estimate of the costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

For transition o Ind AS, the company had elected to continue with fair value of all the property, plant and equipment recognised as on 4
April 2016 (transition date).

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future ecoromic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow ta
the company and its cost can be measured refiably,

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lifes, then they are accounted for as separate item
(major components) of property, plant, and eguipment Major inspection and overhau! expenditure is capitatised if the recognition
criteria are met. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure
and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and lass for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains and Iosses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset
is derecognised. Major inspection and overhaul expenditure is capitalized, if the recognition criteria are met.

Assets under construction

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of assets at sites, construction expenditure and interest on the funds deployed. At the point when
an asset is capable of operating in the manner infended by the management, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate
category of property, plant, and equipment. Costs associated with the commissioning of an asset and any obligatory decommissioning
costs are capitalised until the period of commissioning has been completed and the asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation expenses

Mining properties and cther assets in the course of development or construction and freehold tand are not depreciated or amortised.
Depreciation an other property, plant and equipment is provided on the basis of ‘straight line method over the useful life of assets after
determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life as evaluated by external

valuers and further reviewed by the technical Management based on historical experience.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and if expectations differ from previous
estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Estimated useful life {in years) of assets are as follows:

Assets Useful life {in years)
Buildings 30 to 60 years
Plant and equipment 10 to 40 years
Office equipment & io 10 years
Railway Sidings 5 to 15 years
Furniture and fixture 8 fo 10 years
Vehicles & to 10 years

Furthermose, the Company considers climate-related matters, including physical and transition risks Specifically, the Company
determines whether climate-related legislation and regulations might impact either the useful life ar residual values, e.g., by banning or
restricting the use of the Company’s fossil fuel-driven machinery and equipmeat or imposing additional energy efficiency requirements
on the Company's buildings and office properties

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets are measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated wseful life on a straight line basis. Software is amortised over the estimated useful
life ranging from 2-5 years. Amounts paid for securing mining rights are amortised over the period of the mining lease ranging from 5-
17 years.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are recagnised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised

The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the
asset is different from previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.




FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED.

Noies Forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024 Tz vedanta

D Exploration and evaluation intangible assets

Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred prior to abtaining the mining right or the legal right to explare are expensed as incurred.
Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred after obtaining the mining right or the iegal right to explore are capitafiset as
exploration ard evaluation assets (intangible assets) and stated at cost less impairment, if any. Expleration and evaluation intangible
assets are transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when the techaical feasibility and commercial
viability has been determined. Exploration intangible assets under development are assessed for impairment and impairment foss, if
any, is recognised prior ta reclassification.

Exploration expenditure includes all direct and allocated indirect expenditure associated with finding specific mineral rescurces which
includes depreciation and applicable operating costs of related support equipment and facilities and other costs of exploration activities:

a)Acquisition costs - costs associated with acquisition of licenses and rights to explore, including related professional fees.

b} General exploration costs - costs of surveys and studies, rights of access to properties to conduct those studies (e.g., costs incurred
fer environment clearance, defence clearance, etc.), and salanes and other expenses of geologists, geophysical crews and cther
personnel conducting those studies

c)Costs of expleration drilling and equipping exploration and appraisal wells

Exploration expenditure incurred in the process of determining oil and gas expioration targets is capitalised within “Exploration and
evaluation assets” (intangible assets) and subsequently allocated to drilling activities. Exploration drilling costs are initially capitalised on
a well-by-well basis until the success or otherwise of the well has been established The success or failure of each exploration effort is
judged on a well-by-weli basis. Orfiting costs are written-off on completion of a welt unless the results indicate that hydrocarbon reserves
exist and there is a reasonable prospect that these reserves are commercial,

Net proceeds from any disposal of an exploration asset are initially credited against the previously capitalised costs. Any surplus! deficit
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

E Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized while they are classified as held for sale and are
measured at the fower of carrying amount and fair value Iess costs to sell, Such assets and disposal groups are presented separately
on the face of the balance sheet.

F  Impairment of non-financial assets
Impairment charges and reversals are assessed at the level of cash-generating units

The Gompany assesses at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. The Compary conducts
an internal review of asset values annually, which is used as a source of informaticn to assess for any indications of impairment or
reversal of previously recognised impairment losses. Internal and external factors, such as worse economic performance than
expected, changes in expected future prices, costs and other market factors are also monitored to assess for indications of impairment
or reversal of previcusly recognised impairment losses.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based
on the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the cantinued use of the asset in its present form and its eventual disposal.
The cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assegsments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU far which estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. Value in use
is determined by applying assumptions specific to the Company's continued use and cannot take into account future development.
These assumptions are different to those used in calculating fair value and consequently the value in use calculation is likely to give a
different result to a fair value calculation,

The fair value less costs of disposal calcutation is based an available data {rom binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's fength,
for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset,

The carrying amount of the CGU s determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of the CGU is determined.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated o be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or GGU
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets | an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

G Financial instruments

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

o

e | Gurugram
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FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED.

Notes Farming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024 Az vedanta

Financial assets at amortised cost

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate {EIR} method.
Amartised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount ar premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amartisation is included in interest income in consolidated staternent of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Business mode! assessment
The company makes an assessment of the objective of a business maodel in which an asset is held at a pertfolio level because this best

refiects the way the business is managed, and infermation is previded to management.
Assessments whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest.

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recoghition. ‘Interest’ is
defined as consideration for the time value of meney and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period ¢f time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the company considers the contractual
terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition,

+ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI)
Debt instruments included within the FVQCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
Far equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in QCI. The
+  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {(FVTPL)
Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FYOCI, 1s classified as at FVTPL.
In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at

An equity instrument in the scope of Ind AS 109 is measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent
(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables, contract assets and lease
receivables. The appfication of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reparting date, right from its initial recognition.

At each reporting date, for recogaition of im pairment foss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of
h} Debt instruments measured at FVOCI: Since financial assets are afready reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further
reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount' in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impaisment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit
risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that js designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be

identified on a timely basis,
The Campany does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) firancial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit

impaired on purchase/ origination.

(i) Financial liabilities — Recognition and Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair valve through profit or loss, or as loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, and in the case of financial liabilities at amortised cost, net of directly

Thel.'Corhbany's financial liabilities include frade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee
contracts and derivative financial instruments.

The measurement of financial liahilities depends on their classification, as described below:

+  Financial iabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial Babilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
Gains or losses on liabiities held for trading are recognised in the consclidated statement of profit and loss.
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable o
changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI, These gains/ lesses are not subsequently transferred to consolidated income

+ Financial liabilities at amortised cost {Loans, Borrowings and Trade and Other payables)
After inifial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and trade and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised
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(iv) Financial hiabilities - Derecognition
When a new financial liability is recognised in place of an existing one, the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the statement of prefit and loss.

(v) Eguity ingtruments
Ar equity instrument is any coniract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised ai the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the company when the distribution is authorised, and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution with respect to inferim
dividend is authorised when it is approved by the board of directors of the Company and final dividend is authorised when it is approved
by the shareholders. A correspending amount is recognised directly in eguity,

(G) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

(i)

Initial recagnition and subsequent measurement

In order to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange, interest rate, and commodity price risks, the Company enters into forward, option,
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and
Any gains or losses ansing from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly fo the consolidated statement of profit and
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to the consolidated statement
of profit and loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liabifity.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hegge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are reccgnised in the statement of profit
When an unrecegnised firm commitment is designated as a hedged itemn, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm
commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset o liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in the
statement of prefit and loss. Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Company revokes the hedge relationship, the hedging
instrument or hedged item expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised or no lehger meets the criteria for hedge accounting.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any
ineffective porticn is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss

Amounts recognised in QCI are transferred to the statement of profit and loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such
as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the
cost of a nen-financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised in OCI are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the
non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover {as part of the hedging strategy), or
if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or
toss previously recognised in OC| remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm
commiiment is met.

Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair vafue at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid fo transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that woulkd use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are avaflable to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant abservable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabifities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the fowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is uncbservable.
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The Company assesses at contract inception, all arrangements to determine whether they are, or contain, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

At inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains lease, the Company separates payments and other consideration
required by the arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If the
Company cencludes for a finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are
recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset; subsequently the liability is reduced as payments are made and
an imputed finance cest on the liability is recognised using the Company's incremental borrowing rats.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term jeases and leases of low-
value assels. The Company recognises fease liabilities towards future lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets

{ii} Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (and, in some instances, in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guaraniees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised
by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to
terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to
produce inventories) in the pericd in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate impficit in the lease is generally not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabdities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.. changes to
future paymenis resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of
an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(i) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption 1o its shert-term leases of equipment (i.e., those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition exemption fo leases of office eguipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Inventories

Raw material, stores and spares and work in progress are valued at cost. Raw materials including stores and spares are valued on a
weighted average basis. Finished products are valued at cost or Net Realisable value whichever is lower, cost is raw material cost plus
costs of conversion, comprising labour costs and an attributable proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal levels of
activity and are moved out of inventory on a weighted average basis.

Scraps are valued at net realisable value, Net realisable value is determined based on estimated selling price, less further costs
expected to be incurred for completion and disposal.

Foreign currency transactions

The fusictional currency of the Company is determined as the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates. For all
principal businesses of the Company, the functional currercy is Indian rupee (3). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee
]

(a) In the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies ather than the functional currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the fransaction.

(b} Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies outstanding at the year end, are translated into functional
currency at exchange rates applicable on reporting date.

(¢) Non-monetary assets and Kabilities denominated in foreign cusrencies and measured at histarical cost or fair value are translated at
the exchange rates prevailing on the dates an which such values were determined.

(d} All exchange differences are included in the statement of profit and loss except these where the monetary item designated as an
effective hedging instrument of the currency risk of designated forecasted sales or purchases, which are recognized in the other
comprehensive income.

( ) The gain or loss arising on translation of aon-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or
prafit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

The statement of profit and loss of oil and gas business is translated inta Indian Rupees {INR) at the average rates of exchange during
the year / exchange rates as on the date of the transaction, The Balance Sheet is translated at the exchange rate as at the reporting
date. Exchange difference arising on translation is recognised in other cempyrehensive income and would be recycled to the statement
of profit and loss as and when these operafions are disposed off.
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Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee banefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be
paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. The company has falowing
defined contribution plans:

a) Provident Fund
b} Superannuation Fund

Defined benefit plans

The company has only one Defined benefit ptan - Gratuity. The company net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and priar periods, discounting that amount, and
deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calcuiation of defired benefit abligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculation results in a potential asset for the company, the recognised asset ig limited to the present value of economic benefits
avajlable in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value
of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (exciuding
interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive Income and
are not recycled to the statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the
gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The company recognhises gains and losses on the settlement of a
defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs,

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset at the beginning of the year. Defined
benedit costs are split into current service cost, past service cost, net interest expense or income and remeasurement and gains and
iosses on curtailments and settlements. Current service cost and past service cost are recognised within employee benefit expense.

Net interest expense or income is recognized within finance costs.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Re-measurements are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The company has following long term employment benefit plans:

a) Leave encashment.

Leave encashment is payable to eligible employees at the time of retirement, accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond
twelve months, as long-term employee berefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided far
based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reposting date. Actuanial gains/losses are immediately
taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if
the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the setflement for at least twelve manths after the reporting date.

Borrowing Cost

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the pericd of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Qualifying assets are assets
that riecessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Barrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, Borrowing cost also

includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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tncome tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items

recognised directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive Income

Current tax

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and includes any adjustment ta tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax
Subject to the exceptions below, deferred tax is pravided, using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences at the reporting

dats between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes and on carry forwarg of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses

deferred income tax is not recognised on initial recognition of an asset or liability in & transaction that

(i) 1s not a business combination;

(if} at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss); and

(iii) at the: time of the transaction, does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be recovered.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit entitlement} is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aliow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabikties are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current income tax assets against
current income tax liakilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Further, management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation autherity will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method ar
expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.
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Provisions, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets

Provisions represent liabilities for which the amount or timing is uncertain. Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present
obligation {legal or constructive), as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to setile the obfigation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likefihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whale. A provision is recognised even if the likelihced of an cutflow with respect to any one
itern included in the same ¢lass of cbligations may be smali.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows 1o net
prasent value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vatue of manhey and,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as a
finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one ar mare uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an cutfiow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does
not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Batance Sheet.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclesed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term maney market deposis with original maturities of three
months or less that is readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in valus.

Equity investment in subsidiaries and associates
tnvestments representing equity interest in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

Buyer's credit/ Vendor financing

The Company enters into arrangements whereby banks and financial institutions make direct payments to suppliers far raw materials
and project materials. The banks and financial institutions are subsequently repaid by the Company at a later date providing working
capital timing benefits. These are normally setfied between twelve months (for raw materials) to thirty-six months (for project materials).
Where these arrangements are with & maturity of up to twelve months, the economic substance of the transaction is determined to be
operating in nature and these are recognised as operational buyers’ credit/ suppliers’ credit and disclosed on the face of the balance
sheet. Where these arrangements are with a maturity beyond twelve manths and up to thirty six months, the economic substance of the
transaction is determined to be financing in nature, and these are presented within borrowings in the balance sheet.

Interest expense on these are recognised in the finance cost. Payments made by banks and financial instiutions to the operating
vendors are treated as a non cash item and settlement of due fo operational buyer's credii/ suppliers’ credit by the Campany is treated
as an operating cash cutflow reflecting the subtsance of the payment

Exceptional Items

Exceptional items are those items that management considers, by virtue of their size or incidence (including but not limited to
impairment charges and acquisition ang restructuring related costs), should be disclosed separately to ensure that the financial
information allows an understanding of the underlying performance of the business in the year, so as 1o facilitate compariscn with prior
periods. Also, tax charges related to exceptional items and certain one-time tax effects are considered exceptional. Such items are
material by nature or amount to the year's result and require separate disclosure in accordance with Ind AS.

Earnings per share

Current and non-current classification

The classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet as current / non current has been done on the basis of normal operating
cycle of the Company which is 12 months.

Events occurring after the balance sheet date.

All material events ocourring after the balance sheet date up to the date of consideration of financial statements by the Board of
Directors April 21, 2023, have been considered, disclosed and adjusted, wherever applicable, as per the requirements of Ind AS 10 —
Events after the Reporting Period.
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2.C  Application of new and amended standards

2.C.A The Company has adcpted, with effect from 01 April 2023, the following new and revised standards and interpretations. Their adoption
has not had any significant impact on the amounts reported in the financial statements

1. Amendment to INDAS 37 regarding costs that an entity needs 1o include when assessing whether a contract is cnerous or koss-
making.
2. Amendment to INDAS 109 Financial Instrument regarding inclusian of fees in the *10 per cent’ test for darecognition of financial
liabilities

3. Amendment to INDAS 103 Business Combination, Reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting.

2.C.B Standards notified but not yet effective
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notifie¢ Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022, effective fram 01 April
2023. These amendments are not expected to have any impact an the Company. The Company has not early adopted any
amendments that has been notified but is not yet effective.

2.D Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgemenis, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, Habilities, income, expenses and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reparted amounts of revenues and
expenses for the years presented. These judgments and estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the relevant facts
anrd circumstances, having regard to previous experience, but actual results may differ materially from the amounts included in the
financial statements

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an cngoing basis. Revisicns to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected

A Significant estimates
- Impairment test: key assumptians underlying recoverable amounts, including the recaverability of development costs.
- Useful life: of property, plant & equipment
- Recoverability of defermed tax

B  Significant judgement

i} Contingengies
tn the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation and other claims against the Company. A
pravision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that the Company will
be required to settle that obligation. Where it is management's assessment that the outcome cannot be reliably quantified or is
uncertain, the claims are disclosed as contingent liabiliies unless the fikelihood of an adverse outcome is remote. Such liabilities are
disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the financial statements.

When considering the classification of legal or fax cases as probable, possible or remate, there is judgement involved. This pertains to
the application of the legislation, which in certain cases is based upon management's interpretaticn of country specific applicabie law, in
particular India, and the likelihocd of settlement. Management uses in-house and external legal professionals to make informed
decisicn.

Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the Cempany does not expect them to have a
matenially adverse impact on the Company's financial pesition or profitability.

Information about the judgemants made in applying accounting policies that have the mast significant effects on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements have been given below;

-Leases: Whether an arrangement contains a lease

-Classification of leases into finance and cperating lease

-Classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are held and assessment of whether the
contractual terms of the financial asset are sclely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.
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Property, Plant and equipment

o o : - (¥ In Crores)

ROU Assets- Ptant and Furniture
Particulars Leasedhold Eneelioid Buildings Roac_ls & | Railways Equipm:nt O_fﬁce and Vehicles Total

| | vand Land Drains Siding () Equipments Fixtures ]
|At Cost . _ =
As at 01 April 2022 383 109,93 121,61 8.66 26.96 631.98 582 2.06 362 91447
Additions S 358 3z e - 62 45 146| 022 048 7142
Disposals/ adjustments B N - - 296 056 017 7501 570
Impairment i —— - 1563 01z - 054 ) | - 1629
As at 31 March 2023 383 11351 109.21 854  26.96 690.94 6.72 211 209 96390 |
‘Additions [ [ 011 | 8618 | 5 = 164 40 | 206 040 ) 23315
Disposals/ adjustments T . . 027 - 077 102 026 034 266 |
Impairment — P 006 [ - - — 023 - = 5 029 |
|As at 31 March 2024 3.83 113.62 175.18 8.54 26,96 854.80 7.76 2.25 175 | 1,194.69
[Accumulated depreciation ) i
As at 01 April 2022 035 | - 34.83 5.62 14.35 145,67 2.91 0.79 2.51 207.03
|Depreciation chargs for the year 005 . 382 T 065 164 1874 074| o018 017 2597
Disposals/ adjusiments N . . N 220 028 004 165 427
As at 31 March 2023 1T oa - 38.65 6.27 15.99 162.11 37 0.91 103| 22873 |
[Depreciation charge for the year o005 - 517 051] 164 24 66 101 o7 01z 3333 |
Disposals/ adjusiments _ RN 007 - - 043 0B84 021 008 1 753_‘
As at 31 March 2024 0.45 ) 43.75 678 | 17.63 186.34 354 087 107 26043
Net Book Value — -
As at 31 3.38 113.62 131.43 1.76 9.33 668.46 422 1.38 068 | 934.25
As at 31 March 2023 3.43 113.51 70.56 227 10.97 528.83 35| 1.20 1.06 | 73517

Notes:

a) Piant and equipment include smelters. pewer plants and related facilities
b) Movable Property, Molor Vehiclas and Trade Mark are pledged as collateral against Non-Convertible Debentures, the details related to which have been described in Note 21 on

“Borrowings”

¢) Title deeds of Inmovable Property not held in name of the Company -
Certain title deeds of the immovable Praperties, in the nature of freghald [and & buildings, as indicated in the below mentioned cases which were acquired pursuant to a Schems of
Amalgamation appraved by Nationai Company Law Tribunal's (NCLT) Ordsr dated November 15, 2022, are not individually held in the name of the Company

d) Interest cost capitalised of  3.10

Crs for growth prajects

{¥in Crores)
Whather |
title
deed hefder|
isa
e Title deeds held p;f:;t::l i R fi bel
g . Description | camrying itle deeds hel held eason for not being
Rejevant line :::eltn LS ofitem of | Value as at inthe - re;;uive since held in the name of the :::f::t
property 31 March name of which Company
2024 promoterf | "o
director or
employee
of
promoter/
director
FACOR  Power I;I ct';mp ;:"e
i o the order
Property, Piant and Equipment | Freehold land 696 E‘:;;Zl: (hu[f’ial:I No | 27-Aug-07 of NGLT
FACOR) | | Cuttack,appli
T T
. FACOR p&we( Held in the name of erstwhile :‘:::::;;0:;1
casehol imite: ow ;
Property, Piant and Equipment Q05 - Ne 18-Dec-11 transferor company {FPL} which y .
pen land merged with was amalgamated with the Corpany l:g';g;efm':‘
FACOR) — through spproved Schems FPL to
Leasehold ) p&'f' RACCE B
Property, Plant and Equipment ety 132 | 5™ e No 17-Nov-11 been filed
land merged with! befare the
FACOR) office ol
Capital Work-In-Progress
1% In Grores)
Particulars Asat 3t As at 31
Mareh 2024 |March 2023
Carrying amount of Capital work in progress 54 46 21013

(T In Crores|
Particulars cwip Total

At Cost
As at 01 April 2022 50.50 50.50
Additions 23105 | 23106 |
Capitalisation during the year 7142 7142
As at 31 March 2623 21043 21013
Additions 7793 7783
Capitalisalion dunng the year 233 29 233159
As at 31 March 2024 54.46 54.46

There is no project whose completion is averdue or has exceeded its cost compared ta its original plan during the financizal year 2023-24 or In Project 1, the costs have exceeded
the original plan which was appraved by the SBoard of Directors As on 31 March 2024, thera ara na such projects where cempletion is overdue




41{b)

5.

FERRO ALLOYS CORFORATION LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 Mar 2024

Tvedanta TN

Capital work in progress{CWIP} Ageing Schedule {% n Crores)
T As at 31 March 2024 AT at 31 March 2023
Projects Projects Projects
CWIP F'rrlgectiin temporarily Total ijn (emp:)rarily Total
progress d progress | sugpended
Less than 1 year 243 - 24.91 158 63 E 16983
1-2yaars 17.25 - 17.25 50 50 - 50 50
2-3 years 1230 - 12 30 - S -
Marg than 3 years - - - - - -
Total 54.46 | - S4.48 21012 - 210.13
Stripping Assets and Assets held For Sale
(€ In Crores)
. Assets Held | Stripping
Particulars for Sale Assets Tatal
At Cost
As at 01 Aprit 2022 .01 25.00 25.01
Additions. - 2153 2153
Disposals oao - 000
As at 31 March 2023 0.01 46,53 46.54
Additions - 1412 14 12
Disposals - = -]
As at 31 March 2024 0.01 60.65 60.65
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2022 2 - -
Charge fer the year 84 1841
As at 31 Maych 2023 - 18.41 18.41
Charns for the year - 16 14 16.14
As at 31 March 2024 - 34.55 34.55
Net Book Value
As at 31 March 2024 0.01 26.10 26.11
As at 31 March 2023 o.M 28.11 26.13
Intangible Assets
¥ In Crores)
O!her—[ . ROU
Particulars Mining Right x:;ler:g implimention Acs':ilzlt: Total
At Cost g
As at 01 April 2022 14,54 E 1,65 - 16.19
Additions - 1081 024 - 1105
Disposals - - - - -
Impairment 173 - e - 173
As at 31 March 2023 12.81 10.81 1.89 - 25.51
Additions - - d43 569 812
| Disposals - = - - -
As at 31 March 2024 1281 10.81 2.32 5.69 31.63
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2022 5.62 - 0.21 LE]
Charge for the yaar oep d49 58 - 195
As at 31 March 2023 6.52 0.49 .77 - 7.78
Charge for the year Q67 315 70 076 528
As at 31 March 2024 719 3.64 1.47 0.76 13.06
Net Book Value
As at 31 March 2024 5.62 717 0.85 4.93 18.5¢
As at 31 March 2023 6.29 10.32 112 - 17.73
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(% In Crores)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 Mar 2023
6 Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Others
investment in Subsidiary and Associates- Non current
In Equity Shares of Assaciate Company -Unguoted - fully paid up
4 66,184 {Previcus Year. 4,66,164) Boula Platinum Mining Pvt. Ltd of ¥ 1/- each™ - 005

- 24905

Aggregate bock value of un-guoted investments - 005
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - cos

" Write off of Investmant in Boula Platinum Mining Pvt Ltd due to struckeff
Investment Others- Non current
Investment Measured at fair Value through GCI

Investments in Equity Shares of Other Companies - Quoted, fully paid-up

5,00,000 (Previous Year 3,00000) Facor Alloys Limited of 2 1/- each 0.35 033

Investment Measured at amortised cost
Government Securities - Unquoted

6 years National Savings Certificates oao 0.00
036 0.39

Investments at fair value through QCI (fully paid) reflect investment in quoted equity shares These eqguity shares are designated zs FVTOCI as they are not held for
trading purpose Thus, disclosing their fair value fiuctuation n profit cr loss will not reflect the purpese of holding Increase in amount of quoted equity shares s due
to increase in market value of shares i e (¥ 7 08 per shars Vs ¥ 6 68 per share}

Aggregate bock value of quoted investments 035 0.33
Aggregate Market value of quoted investments 035 033
Aggregate bock value of un-quoted investments 000 0.00

Equity tnvestments in FACOR Alloys Limited are pladged as collateral against Non-Convertible Debenturas, the detalls related te which have been descrbed in
Note 21 on "Borrowings”

Investment in Others - Current

investment in Mutual Fund- Aditya Birla Sunlife Overnight Fund 97,022 167 units @ ¥ 1295 05 perunit 12 56 -
12 56 -

7 Financial Assets - Others
Financial assets at amortised cost
Secunty deposits 16 49 17 66
Fixed Deposits with Banks* 232 1596
1882 3362

*Fixed Deposits incfude Lien Marked FDs of matunty more than 12 manths which will be renewed on matunity until Business requirement

8 Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred Tax Liability:
Difference between Bock and Income Tax depreciation 11538 107 81
Gthers 003 630
Deferred Tax Assets:
Disallowance ufs 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1861 to be allowed on payment basis 142 096
Qthers 290 -
Current year Unabsorbed Depraciation and Business Loss” 174 54 184.68
Net Deferred Tax Assets 63 45 71.54

*Section 72 A of Income Tax Act, 1951 allows carry forward and set off of accumulated losses / unabsorbed depreciation in case of amalgamation / demerger Total
Business Losses amounting to ¥ 308 Cr and Unabsorbed Depreciation amounting to ¥ 405 Cr claimed in Revized Income Tax Return filed after merger of FACOR
power lmited with FACOR

9 Other Non-Current Assets

Unsecured, considered good

Capital Advances* 12876 235

Balance with Government Authorities™ 2709 1718

Prapaid Expenses 08z 050

Unsecured, considered doubtiul 120 546

Provision for Doubtful Advances (120} (5 48)
154 B 2003

* Capital advance does not includes related party suppliers
** Balance with Government Authoriies includes depasit with Government Authorties of ¥ 11.79 Cr paid under protest to vanous Govt authorties, GST refunds

receivable of 14.85 Cr and Royalty of ¥ 0.45 Cr.
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10 Inventories
Raw materials Includes matenal in transit
Stock-1n-Process
Finishad Products
Stores and spares
For method of valuation for each class of Inventories Refer Note 2 B (K)

11 Trade Receivables

Unsecured, Considered good

Trade receivables Ageing Schedule

¥ In Crores)
As at As at

31 March 2024 3 Mar 2023
7550 94 43
- 128
1275 296
11.78 15.19
106 02 113 868
4165 2805
41.85 2805

I Particulars

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Unsecured-Undisputed
Not Dus

Less than 6 months

B months — 1 year

Total

Total Trade receivables

- 18 53
4165 851
- oot
4185 2808
41.65 28.05

For amounts due and terms and conditions relating to related party raceivables, see note 43

No trade raceivable are due from directers or other officers of the company either sevsrally or jointly with any other person Nor any trade or other receivable are due

from firms or private companies respectively in which any director 1s a partner, a director or g member

Trade receivables are non-mterest bearing and are generaily on terms of 0 o 90 days There are no unbilled recevables, hence the same is not disclosed in the

ageing schedule

There are no Secured-Undisputed and Unsecured-Disputed Trade Recevables

Book Debts are pladged as collateral against Non-Convertible Debentures the details related to which have been described in Note 21 on

12 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Balance with banks
On current account
Cash on hand

"Borrowings’

At 31 March 2024, the company had available 2 24 Cr (31 March 2023 Z 10 Cr) of undrawn cash credit mit

13 Other Bank Balance
Bank deposits

Bank Deposits aams interest at werghled average of 6 20 % p a.

14 Loans
Loans ta employees

15 Derivatives
Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts gt FVTPL* {Refer note 45)

16 Other Financial Assets
Fiharcial assets at amortised cost
Secunty Depesits
Interest accrued on term deposits

17 Current Tax Assets
Advance Tax (Net of Provisian for Tax)

18 Other Current Assets
Unsecured, considered good
Advance related to Supplies
Balarce with governmant authonties
Prepaid Expenses
Gthers
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Less Prowision for Doubtful Advances

496 402
4 59 402
——— T i
2400 18.00
2400 18 00
e 0
014 019
014 013
e — e Y
o -
_— 001 =
—— e
ogr 087
1.08 0ss
206 1.85
—r——— ) ———
4122 4198
41.22 4196
—— e C%
1875 4875
7.51 2110
€81 827
001 001
310 4.57
{310} (4 57)
3409 7813
——— —_— e =JA5a
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(% In Crores)
19 Share Capital As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Authorised :

7,07,00,00,000 (Previous Year -7,07,00,00,000) Equity Shares of 1%~ each 707.00 707.00
23,00,000 (Previous Year -23 00,000) 0.01% Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 100/- each 23.00 23.00
730.00 730.00

Issued, subscribed & fully paid up:
34,00,01,800 (Previous Year - 34,00,01,800) Equily Shares of ¥ 1/- each 34.00 34.00
34.00 34.00

{a) Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 1/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vole per share.
{b} In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled o receive remaining assels, if any of the company after distribution of

all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by sharehoiders.

{c) Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beglinning and end of the year :

{in Crores)
Number of Shares Amount
{Cutstanding at the 1 April 2022 34.00 34.00
Changes during the period G.00 -
Outstanding at the 31 March 2023 34.00 34.00
Changes during the period - -
Qutstanding at the 31 March 2024 34.00 34.00

{d} Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by Its holding company, ultimate holding company and their

subsidiaries/ associates are as below:
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Vedanta Limited {Holding Company) 339,999,994 339,999,004

(e} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company*

Name of the Shareholder As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
No. of Shares % held  No. of Shares % held
Vedanta Limited (Halding Company) 338,990,954 100% 339,999,854 100%

" The % of halding has been calculated on the issued and subscribed share capital as at the respective balance sheet dates.
As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/imembers, the above shareholding represents legal ownership of shares.
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20 Other equity

(a)} Capital Reserves
Balance at the beginning of the year*
Addition during the year
Balance at the end of the year

{b) General Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Transfer from surplus balance in the statement of Profit & Loss
Balance at the end of the year

(c) Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year
Due to effect of merger
Add: Profit for the year after taxation as per statement of Profit and Loss

(d) Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additfon during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Total Equity (a+b+c+d)
Nature and purpose of other reserves

Capital reserve

As at
31 March 2024

(¥ In Crores)
As at
31 March 2023

1,161.37 1,161.37
1,167.7 116137
192.00 192.00
192.00 192,00
(327.50) (602.56)
g {16.92)
20.97 292.09
(306.53) {327.50)
{0.28) 0.37
{1.02) (0.65)
{1.30) {0.25)
1,045.54 1,025.58

The amount includes ¥ 230.06 Cr consequent to merger of FACOR Power Limited with FACOR (refer Note-47).

General reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified
percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a
given year is more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for that year, then the total dividend distribution is less than the total

distributable reserves for that year. Consequent to intraduction of Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"
specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn.

Other Comprehensive Income

(a) Remeasurements of defined benefit plans represents the following as per

Actuarial gains and losses.

The return en plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest an the net defined benefit liability (asset); and

Any change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net

(b) Fair value of Investment.

Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits:

), the requirement to mandatory transfer a

interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset).
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(¥ in Crores)
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

21 Financial liabilities - Borrowings

A.Non-current borrowings

From refated parties Vedanta Ltd (Halding Company} * 125.00 22.03
Non - convertible debentures - 50.50
Less: Current maturity of Non - convertible debentures - {50.50)

125.00 2203

* In the Current year Vedanta foan of ¥ 22.03 Cr was repaid and new loan of ¥ 125 Cr was taken which bears interest rate@ 9.35%

B.Current borrowings

From Banks - Bills Discounting* 28.59 21.66
Current maturities of long-term debts ** - 50.50
28.59 72.16

* Bills discounting interest rate is 8.26% and maturity with in one year,

** An amount mentioned in the Resolution Plan, forming part of the Admitted Financial Debt will be converted inta zero coupon, secured
and unlisted Nen Convertible Debentures (NCD) of the Compary and will be issued to the Financial Craditors in proportional manner
(Deferred consideration) on the terms and conditions mentioned in the Resclution Plan. As per the Resolution Plan Non convertible
debentures has fo be paid in four equal instalments, Fousth being due and has been paid on 31 March 2024.

Movable Property, Motor Vehicles, Book Debts, Trade Mark and Equity Investments in Facor Alloys Limited are pledged as collatsral
against Non-Convertible Debentures

22 Lease Liabilities (T in Crores)
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Non-curre Current Non-current Current
Lease Liabilities* 3.88 1.27 0.17 0.00
3.88 1.27 0.17 0.00

* The movement in lease liabilities is as follows:
{Z in Crores)

Particulars Amount
As at 31 March 2023 0.17
Add:Lease liability of ROU Assets® 4.98
Add:Lease liability Interest unwinded for FY 2023-24 0.02
Less: Lease land rent charges FY 2023-24 (0.02)
As at 31 March 2024 515

*Capitalizing the license cost of SAP Rise Contract Cost as ROU Assets cloud.

23 Operational Buyers Credit/ Suppliers’ Credit

Operational Buyers Credit 9.28 12.68
928 12.68

Operational Buyers'/Suppliers' Credit is availed in foreign currency from Indian banks at interest rate of (6M SOFR+ Spread) as at 31
March 2024. The maximum lenure of these irade credits is 180 days from the value date of buyers credit.

24 Provisions

{A} Provisions- Non current

Provision for Gratutty (Refer note 44) 0.85 1.14
Provigien for compensated absences 251 2.25
Provisien for mine restoration & decommissioning* 4.78 4.58

8.15 7.97

* The movement in provisions for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs is as follows
(% in Crores)

Particulars Amount
As At 01 April 2022 1.63
Unwinding of discount 2.95
At 31 March 2023 458
Unwinding of discount 0.20
At 31 March 2024 4.78

Restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs

The provisions for restoration, rehabilitation and envirenmental liabilities represent the management's best estimate. The principal
restoration and rehabilitation provisions are recorded within mines whese a legal obligation exists relating to the mining fields, where costs
are expected to be incurred in restoring the site of production facilities at the end of the producing life of mine. The Company recognises
the full cost of site restoration as a liability when the obligation to rectify environmental damage arises of the costs which will be incurred in
the future to meet the Company's obligations under existing Indian law and the terms of the Company's exploration and other licences and
confractual arrangements.These amounts are calculated by considering discount rates 6.84% and become payable at the end of the
producing life of mine and are expected 1o be incurred over a period of 13 years for Ostapal Mine .8 years for kathapal mine and 36 years
for Kalarangitta mine. An obligation te incur restoration, rehabilitation and environmenial costs arises when environmentat disturbance is
caused by the development or ongeing production from mines.
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{¥ In Crores)
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

{B) Provisions- Current

Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 44) 2.63 073
Prevision for compensated absences 0.64 0.64
3.28 1.36

25 Trade Payables

Total cutstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 3274 11.73
Tota! putstanding dues to creditors other than Micre Enterprises and Small Enterprises 203.24 183.36
235.98 19508

For amount due and terms and conditions relating to related party payables, refer aote 43.
Trade payables are non-nterest bearing and are normally settied up to 90 days terms
Far explanations on the Cormnpany's credit isk management processes, refer to Note 45,

Trade payables Ageing Schedule

Particulars As at 31 March As at 31
2024 March 2023

Undisputed dues- Micro Enterprises and Small

Enterprises

Unbilled Dues 3.18 0.14

Not due 29.56 -

Less than 1 year - 11.59

Total 3274 11.73

Undisputed dues- Other than Micro Enterprises and

Small Enterprises

Unbilled Dues 4841 18.06

Not due 137.15 3431

Less than 1 year 17.68 130.08

Total 235.98 195.09

The disclosures relating to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises have been fumished 1o the extent such parties have been identified on
the hasis of the intimation received from the suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Deveiopment
Acl, 2006, There is interest paid of 2 0.01 Cras at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: NIL)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(i) Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 32.73 1.3

(ii) Interast due on above - -

(iii) The amount of inferest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMEL Act, - -
2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the

appointed day during each accounting year.

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 001

(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without

adding the inferest specified under the MSMED Act, 2008.

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting - -
year.

(vi)The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding - -
years, until such date when the interest ues as above are actually paid fo the small

enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under

section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

32.74 1.73
26 Derivatives
Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts at FVTPL ( Refer Note No-45) - 0.13
- 0.13
*Deivative represent assets in current year and liabilty in previous year
27 Cther Financial Liabilities
Security Deposits 20.77 23.29
Payable to Suppliers of Capital Goads 2.60 -
Employee Benefits Payable 3.06 0.04
26.43 23.33
28 Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Leabiities 4.23 2.52
Advance from customers 5.82 5.62
Citer Liabilities 0.17 0.14
10.02 B.25

a) Statutory liabilities includes payable for PF,PT, ESIC ,Goods and Services Tax and withhalding tax.
b) Advance from customers are contract liabilities to be settled through delivery of gaods. The amount of such balances as on 01 April 20,
was ¥ 5.62 Cr. During the current year, the Company has fecognised revenue of out of such opening balances. All other changes are ei
due fo receipt of fresh advances or exchange differences.

b) Other liabilities includes other deduction from salary.
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30

31
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33

34

35

36

(¥ in Crores)
Year Ended Year Ended
3 March 2024 31 March 2023

Revenue from Operations

Sale of products 79594 769.44

Sale of power 19.91 412
815 85 773 56

Notes:-

(a) Mayonity of the Company's sales are against advance ar are against letters of credi/ cash aganst documants! guarantees of
banks of naticnal standing Whera sales are made on credit the amount of consideration does nat cantan any significant
financing component as payment terms are within 90 days

(b} Revenue Detalls

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Particutars External Inter Company External Inter Company
Domestic sale manufactured goods 80926 870 656 20 58z
Sale of power 1881 - 412 -
Export sale manufactured goods 17898 - 107 42 -
Total 809.15 6.70 767.74 5,82
Other Operating Revenues
Export Incentivas 1.60 117
Scrap sale 140 318
Otherg* 019 045

348 478

* Others includes Excess pravision/ hability written back

Other Income
Interest income from financial assets measured 2t amortised cost
On bank deposits o081 368
Others 220 064
Net gain on sale of current Investments 049 B
Foreign exchange fluctuations (net) a78 -
Miscellaneous Receipts* Far 1342
1164 17 73

*In the current year miscellaneous receipts includes Liquidated Damages recovered against commissicrung mimma of ¥6 76 Cr
from ATMASTCO for delay in project delivery In previous year the same includes GST Compensalion cess and GST receivable
due to merger amounting to € 11 97 Cr

Facor Power Limited {FPL) was charging off 1ts GST & GST compensation cess paid on nput services to Statement of Profit ang
Loss because its final output {Power) was axempt from GST Upon merger of FACOR & FPL pursuant to Scheme of
Amalgamation, FACOR has niow fited for claiming Input Tax Credit (ITC') relating to FPL's input services far the penod October
2020 to November 2022 (1e from appointad date of merger il the date of actual crder) as this ITC can be utlised agamnst the
final autput of FACOR on which GST is applicable

Cost of Materials Consumed 36597 26714

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work in Process

Opening steck;:

Finished Goods 298 571

Work in progress 123 197
Total 4.18 7.68

Closing stock.

Firushed Geoods 1275 296

Waork in progress - 123
Total 12.75 4.18

Changes in Inventory (8 51) 249

Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries and wages 48 99 3688

Centribution to provident and other funds 23 2

Contributicn to Gratuity and Superannuation {Refer Note 44) 055 099

Staff welfare expenses G628 598

5812 45 95

Code on Social Security, 2020

The Cads an Socral Security, 2020 (Code') relating o employee bensfits during employment and pecst-amployment benefits
received Prgsidential assent in Septerber 2020 The Code has been published in the Gazette of India However, the date on
which the Code will come into affect has not been notfied and the final fules/intarpratation have not yet been 1ssued The
Company wi! assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effact and wilf record any related impact in the penicd the Code
becomes effective

Finance Cost

Interest on loans 26.09 17 42

Bank Charges and Gomrmission 113 047

Other borrowing costs i1.02 (6.18)

Interest exp con lease liabihty o aa2

Less:Capntalisation of finance costs {Refer Note No-3 d) (3.10) -
3534 1176

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Depraciation on Property,plant & equipment & Sinpping assets (Note-no-3 & 4 b} 45 48 41 67

Amortisation on intangible assets and other Mining assets (note No-5) 528 194

54 76 43 61
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ta)

1)

(% In Crores)
Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Other Expenses
Mining Hanaling & Other Production expensas 2755 2832
Power and fugl 52 88 93 35
Electricity duty on auxhary consumption 180 100
Rapairs and maintenance
- Buildngs 304 376
- Plant and machnery 13 56 1001
Freight Shipment & Sales Expensas 1022 832
Consumption of Stores & Spares parts 41 49 3162
Work Expenses
Rent 060 03
Insurance 293 298
Rates and Taxes 099 085
Proviston for Doubtful advances (570) 207
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 086 107
Remuneration to Auditors (Refer note 37 1) 107 115
Directors' sitting fees 012 005
Commussion to Non Wholetime Directors 136 0.50
Royalty 857.27 62132
Other operating expenses 3435 2364
Demurrage & Puntive 050 -
Advance written off 703 -
Water charges 207 194
Expense towards corporate social respansiility {Refer note 50 (mj ) 368 287
Fareign exchange fluctuations (net) - 040
Advertisement expanses 025 008
Legal Professionsl expenses 973 838
Corporate Allocation Expenses 732 1419
Secunty expenses - 595 410
Sundry balances Written off 049 37
Travelling expenges 089 a78
Miscellaneous expenses 1381 1078
298 12 31280
Remuneration to auditors:
Statutory Auditor
Statutory Audit Fees 027 015
Q27 015
Exceptional tems
Assets written off / wnitten back (Impairment) 029) 180
Invastment written off * 005 om
(0 28) 18 02
“Write off of investment in Boula Platinum Mining Pyt Ltd dus to siruckoff
Tax Expenses
Income Tax Expenses
Current Tax Expenses
Current year - -
Adjustment for previous Year - (113 50)
- (113 50)
Deferred Tax Expenses
Change in recognised temporary differences 844 (8529
Totaf Tax Expenses 844 (198 78}
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profitf(loss) before tax 29.41 8330
Applcable tax rate 025 025
Computed Tax Expenses 740 2348
Tax Effect of:
Deferred tax asseY hadility recognised on business losses of FPL* 948 {106 86)
Tax Expense - adjustment of PY** - {113 50)
Other permanent differences (8 486) {190}
Tax Expenses recognised in profit and loss 842 (198 78)
Effective Tax Rate 29% -213%

" In the previous year, ¥ 107 Cr of deferred fax assets (net} largely on unabaorbed depreciation and tax lesses of Facor Power
Limited which is available for utiksatron from taxable profits of subsequent years has been recegnised post ts merger with Facor
Alloys Corporation Limited Based on the financial forecasts of the merged entity, 1t 1s probable o reahse the deferred tax assets

™ This ralates to reversal of tax for AY 202122 & AY 2022-23 pursuant to ulilisation ofunaberbed depreciation and tax losses of
Facor Powsr Limited post merger with FACOR The Company has revised the retums for both the assessment years to reflect the
same This has resulted in tax recoverable of ¥ 42 Cr which 15 disclosed under Current Tax Assets

40 Eamning per Share

Profit after tax attnbutable to equity share holders for Basic and Diluted EPS

Profitf (loss) for the penod 2047 292.09
Weighted average number cf ordinary shares cutstanding during the year 34.00 34.00
EPS - Basic and Diluted 062 a59
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41 Commitments, contingencies and guarantess

{A) Capital And Other Commitrments

Estimated amount of cantracts on Capial Account remaming to be exacuted and not provided for in accounts 2 1109 22 Cr (Previous Year ¥ 35 45 Cr)

{B) Contingent Liabilities

Clams against the Company not acknowledged as debts, since disputed ¥ 2 19 Cr (Previous Year ¥ 2 12 Cr) Amounts paid under protest 2 0 38 Cr (Pravious Year ¥ C 38 Cr) have
been debited to Advance Account

{€ In Crores)
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Amount involved Paid under protest Amouitt involved Paid under protest
Excise G40 o007 040 a07
Employses and Ex Employess 008 - 001 -
Mining Cases* 171 031 171 031
Total 2.19 0.38 2.12 0.38

“Out of T 171 Gr. amaount of T 1.4 Cr comprises of Ground Water Tax for which the Company has made representation befare the Executive Enginesr Jaraka Irrigation
Division against the demanded amount as the same 1s not payable as per the NCLT Cuttack Division order The balanca amount of 2 0 31 Cr compnses of Surface Rent
and Dead Rent

{C) Contingent Assets

The company has no contingent asset as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

(D} Guarantees

Details of Bank Guar are given below: {¥ In Crores)
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2023
Mining Authorities 853 853
Pollution control Boarg 013 013
Ceal Linkage 517 183
Sale of power through cpen access 038 039
Water linkage 228 168
Paradip Port 008 -
Total 16.59 12.65

42 Segment information

Segment infarmation is presented in respect of the company's key aperating segments The operating segments are hased on tha company’s management and internal reporting structure

Operating Segments

The Management Informaticn System of the Company dentifies and monitors Ferro Allays as the business segment The Company 18 managed crganisationally as a single unit In the apinion
of the management, the Company 1s primarily ergaged In the business of Ferro Alloys As the basic nature of these activities are governed by the same set of nsk and return, these constitute
and are grouped as a single segment Accordingly, there 15 only one Reportable Segment for the Company which s "Ferro Alloys®, hence no specific disclosures have begn made

Entity wise disciosures

(A} Information about products and services
During the year, the Company primarily operates in one product line, therefore product wise revenue disclosure is not applicable

{B} Information about Geographical Areas

The Company darives ravenue from following major geograpincal areas

(& In Crores)
Area For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Outstde India (Includgs Deamed Export) 36563 25164
Domestic 45023 524,82

All the nen-current assets of the company other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment banefit assets are located in India

(C) Information about Major Customers {from External Customers)

The Company darives ravenues from the following customers whete each contributes to 10 per cent or more of an entity's revenues
{% In Crores)

External Customers For the year ended For the year ended

21 March 2024 31 March 2023
Mortex 11016 8461
Giencore International AG a7 58 -

PQSCO 82 40 N
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43 Related Party Disclosure:-

L List of Related Parties and relationship:-
Other Entities with whom transactions have taken place during the year :

Vedanta Lmited- Holding company
Hindustan Zinc Limited

ESL Stesl Limited

Bharat Aluminium Company Ltd

Vedanta Ltd Sesa Iron Ore

Vedanta Limited - Sterlite Copper

Vizag General Cargo Berths Private Limited
Vedanta Alumimum Limited - Langigarh
Vedanta Aluminium Limited - Jharsuguda
10 Vedanta Limited - Canin O1f & Gas

11 FACCR Superannuation Trust

12 STL Digtal Limited

13  Fujairah Gold FZC

Lo e B e I BN VI R Y

. Transactions with Related Parties during the year ended 31 March 2024 in the ordinary course of business.
{¥ In Crores)

With Subsidiary Companies Other Entities with whom transactions taken
Particulars place
As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2023 | As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2023
1} |Purchass of Goods/Services . - - 1.4 388
ii) |Sate of Goods - - 670 582
i) |Purchase of Assels - - 0.04 014
Iv) _|Sale of Assels - - ¢1s c03
v) |Purchases of Stores and Spares - - 000 -
vi} |Interest paid faccrued and not paid - - 496 161
vil) |Reimbursement cf Expenses - om 14 02 1820
vir) |Recovery of Expenses - - 155 050
1) |Sitting Fees and Lommissicn pad to Directors - - 148 024
X) __|Long Term /short term Borrowings - - 12500 2203
x1)__[Advance for Raw Matenza)s - b N -
Balances outstanding at the year end - N - -
xi) |2 Long Term /short tarm Borrowings - o 12500 22.03
b} Other Current Liabihiies - - 1552 1188
c} Other Current Assets - - 047 073
{¥In Crores)
Sl.No Particulars Relationship As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2023
1 |Purchase of GoodsiServices
ESL Steels Limited Others - 388
STL Digital Limuted Others 148 -
Total 148 388
2 [Sale of Goods
ESL Stesls Limited Others 870 £82
Total 670 582
2 |Purchase of Assets
Himdustan Zinc Limited COthers ool -
Bharat Aluminium Company Limitad Qthers 001 -
ESL Stesls Limited Others - 001
Vedanta Lid S&sa lron Ore Gthers 001 012
Total oo4d 014
4 [Sale of Assets
Hindustan Zinc Limited QOthers 015 -
Vedanta Ltd Sesa Iron Cre Others - oo
ESL Steels Limited Others - 001
Total 0135 003
5 |Purchase of stores & spares
Vedanta Alluminium Limited -Jharsuguda Others G Qoo -
C 00 -
6 [Interest Paid/accrued and not paid
Vedanta Limited Halding Company 496 161
Total 496 161
7 |Reimbrushment of Expenses
Vedanta Limited Holding Company 960 11 50
Vedanta Ltd Sesa Iron Ore Others 241 554
Vedanta Alluminium Limited -Jharsuguda Others 000 002
Vedanta Limted - Cairn Ol & Gas Othars 002 Qo5
Vedanta Linited - Sterlite Cooper Others 038 038
Facor Realty and Infrastructure Linited Subsidiary - oot
Superannuation ta employees Others 004 03
Subscription of Flahl Others - om
Vedanta Allumimium Limited -Langhtgarh QOthers o003 008
Hindustan Zinc Limied Others 030 Qo2
Bharat Aluminium Company Ltd Others 044 -
ESL stesl Limitad Others 003 030
Fujairah Gold FZC Others 002 -
Vizag Genaral cargo Berth Pyt Lid Others 002 -
STL Dvgital Limited Qthers 072 -
Total 14 02 18 20
&  |Recovery of Expenses
Vedanta Limitad Holding Company 002 N
Vizag General carge Berth Pyt Lid Others 0.02 Qo3
Bharat Aluminizm Company Ltd Othars 072 013
Hindustan Zinc Lirmited Others o 013
Vedanta Alluminium Limited -Jharsuguda Cthers coa Qo5
Vedanta Allumimum Limited -Langhigarh Cthers 009
Vedanta Ltd Sesa Iron Ore Others 0.09
ESL steel Limited Others 009
\gdanta Limitad - Sterlite Cooper Others 0.22
‘,& Total 1.55
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{¥ In Crores)
Sl.No Particulars Relationship As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2023
9 Sitting Fee and Commission paid to
Directors
Commssion Cthers 136 016
Sitting Feas Others 012 008
Total 148 024
10 |Short term/Long Term Borrowings
Vedanta Limled Holding Company 12500 2203
Total 12500 2203
11 [Advance for Rawmaterials and refund received
Vedanta Lid Sesa Iron Ore Others 2200 -
{22 00) &
Vedanta Allurninium Limited -Jharsuguda Others - 2400
- {24 00)
Total - -
12 |Balances Outstanding at the vear end
(A} Long Term Borrowings
Vedanta Limited Holding Company 125 00 2203
Total 12500 2203
(B} Other Current Liamilities
Vedanta Limited Holding Company 1516 1162
Vedanta Ltd Sasa iron Qre Others 009 024
Vedanta Limited - Starlite Copper Others - ooz
Bharat Aluminium Company L td Others g14 -
STL Digital Lirited Others 010 -
Vizag General cargo Berth Pyt Ltd Others o002 -
Fujairah Goid FZC Others go2 -]
Tatal 1552 1188
{C) Other Current Assets
ESL steel Limited Others 043 050
Vizag General cargo Berth Pyt Ltd Others - o003
Bharat Aluminium Company Ltd Others - 05
Vedanta Alluminium Limited -Jharsuguda Others - 004
Vedanta Aliuminium Limited -Langhigarh Gihers - cn
Hindustan Zing Limited Others 0Q0 -
Vedanta Limtted - Sterlite Cooper Others 004 -
Taotal Q47 073
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44 Employee Benefits
The Company Contributes To The Following Post-Employment Defined Benefit Plans In india

Defined Contribution Ptans:

vedonta

Amountof 231 Cr {Pravious Year 7201 Cr)is recognised as expenses and included in "Employee Benefits Expense" in Note 34 of the Statement of Profit and Lass.

Defined Benefit Plan :

The company has a defined beneafit gratutty plan Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is entitled to Gratuity on terms not less favourable than the provisions
of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1872 The scheme 1s funded with SBI Life Insurance and Bajaj Aliance in form of qualifying msurence pohcy
The company also extends benefit of compensated absences to the employees, whereby they are eligible to carry forward thewr entittement of privilege leave for encashment. This 1s

unfunded plan

The most recent actuanal valuation of plan assets and the present valug of the defined benefit chhgation for gratuity wers cared cut as at 31 March 2024 The present value of the
defined benefit obligations and the related cument service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Prajected Unit Credit Methed

Based on the actuanal valuation obtained in this respect. the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as at

balance sheet date

Net Defined Benefit Liability

H March 2024

(¥ In Crores)
31 March 2023

Liabiltty for Gratuity 349 187
Liability fer P Encashment 318 289
Total Employee Benefit Liability B.65 4.76
Non-Current 337 338
Current 328 137
{A) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing balances of the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation

(% In Crores}
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 iarch 2023
Present value of Dafined Benefit Obligahcn at the beginning of the year 187 gs9
Interest Cost 014 0oy
Current_Service Cost 0867 0465
Actuanal Losses/{Gans) 093 038
Banafits Paid {013) 0.21)
Presant value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the ciose of the year 3.49 1.87

{B) Changes inthe Fair Value of Plan Assets and reconciliation thereof

(T In Crores)

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 814 958
Add Expected Return on Plan Assets 043 063
Addifless) Actuanal Gains/{l osses) - 5
Add Cortibutions a13 oo
Less - Benefits Paid 271) {2 08)|
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the close of the year 5.99) 8.14]
{C) Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet

(% In Crores)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 847 1001
Less Fair Vaiue of Plan Assets 599 814
Fresent Value of unfunded obligation 3.48 1.87|
{D) Amount Recognised inthe Statement of Profit and Loss are as Follows |

(€ In Crores)

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Charged to statement of Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost q67 065

Interest Cost/{income} 014 007
0.81 0,72

Charged to statement of Profit and Loss.

Net actuanal loss/{gain) 083 036
0.93 0.26]

{E) Investment Details:

Funds Managed by Insurer {investment with insurer) 100% 100%

(F} Actuarial Assumptions as atthe Balance Sheet date

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Discount Rate

7.10%

7 39%

Salary Escalatton Rate

5 00%

500%

The estmates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promation and other relevant facters including supply and demand in the

emplayment market The above information 1s certified by the actuary

The Expacted Rate of Retum on Plan Assets is determined congidenng several applicable factors, mainly the composition of Plan Assets held, assessed nisks, histoncal results of return en

Plan Assets and the Company's policy for Plan Assets Management

The expected contrbutions for Defined Benefit Plan for the next financial year will be in hne with FY 2023-24
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(G} Principal Acturial Assumption
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

1) Retirement Agae (Years) 58 58
i} Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM (2012 - 14) 100% of JALM (2012 - 14}
I Attrition at Ages Withdrawal Rate (%] Withdrawal Rate (%}

Up to 30 Years 42 2 12 2

From 3110 44 years 13 2 13 2

Above 44 years 15 2 18 2
{H) Bifurcation of Actuarial Gain/Loss on Obiligation (% In Crores)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
a)Actuanal (Gainyloss on ansing from Change in Demographic Asgsumphon - -
b) Actuarial {Gain)/Loss on arising from Change m Firancial Assumption 011 (009)
¢Actuanal (Gain)/Loss on arising from Experience Adjustment 085 038
{l}Actuarial Gain/Loss on Plan Asset (¥ In Crores)
Particulars. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Expected Intarest Income 080 068
Actual Income or: Plan Asset 043 063
|Actuarial gam /{ioss} for the year on Asset {£17) (0 06)

{J) Sensitivity Analysis:

Significant Actuanal Assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit oblgation are discount rate expacted salary Increase and employee tumcver. The sensilivity analysis below
have been datermined based on reasonably possible changas of the assumptions occurring at énd of the reporting penod | while holding ali othar assumptions constant The result of
Sensttvity analysis 1s given below

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Increase Decrease ncrease Decrease
Change n discounting rate (delta effect of +/~ 0 5%} (024) 028 017 013
Changa in rate of salary increase (delta effect of +/- 0 5%) 0.26 {0.25) 018 {0 17)

{K) Risk Analysis:
Valuations are based on certain assumptons, which are dynamic in nature and vary aver tme As such company is expesed to various nsks as follaw -

A) Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan's hability Increase m salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will alsc increase the Lability

B} Investment Risk — If Plan is funded then assets habilities mismatch & actual mvestment return on assets lower than the discount rale assumed at the last valuation date can impact the
G} Discount Rate  Reduction in discaunt rate in subseguent valuations can increase the plan's Lability

D) Mortality & disabiity — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilites

E) Withdrawals ~ Actual withdrawzls proving higher or fower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan's hability
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45 Financial instruments
A Financial assets and liabilities:
The accounting classification of each category of financial insuments, end their Garmying amounts, are set gut below:
(% In Crores}
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
. - . Fair value other Fair value other
Glnanclalssssia ki valu_e thraugh comprehensive Amartised Cost Fair valu_e through comprehensive | Amaortised Cost
proefitfloas h profitloss
intome income
Non-current investments * - 036 - - 034 -
Muytual Fund 12.56 - - - - -
Other non-current financial assels - - 18 82 - - 3362
Trade racavablegs - B 41 85 - - 2805
Cash and cash squivalents N = 499 E - 402
Bank balances other than above - = 24 00 - 1800
Denvatives o001 E - - - -
Other currant financial assets - - 220 - - 203
Total 12.58 0.36 $1.65 - 0.34 85.73

“Excludes invastments (in equity and preference shares) in subsidianes, associates and joint ventures which are carried at

*Financial Instruments Disclosures”

cost and hence are not required to be disclosed as

per Ind AS 107

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

]
]

Fair value other

U . Fair value other 0
financialCiabliias aie valt{e through comprehensive Amortised Cost Fair value through comprehensive | Amncriised Cost
profitiioss income profitioss e
Non-current financial liabilities
Barmrowings - - 12500 - - 2203
Lesse Liahiliies - - 388 - = 017
Cument financial liabilities
Borrowings* - - 28 59 - - 7216
Leasa Lighilities 127
Trada payables = - 23598 - - 195 09
Operational Buyers Credit - - 928 - - 1268
Derivatives - - 013 - -
Other financial habilties - - 26 43 - - 2333
= - 430.43 0.13 - 325.48

*Bomowing includes Bills discounting

m

. Fair value hierarchy

The Campany uses the follewing hisrarchy for determining andior disclosing the fair value of financial mstruments by valuation techniques
(1} Level 1 quoted prices {unadjusied) m active markets for identical assels or liabilties
{n) Level 2. inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, erther directly (1 & as pnces) or indirectly (| @ denved from prces)
(i} Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based cn observable market data {unobservable inputs)
The below table summanses the categories of financial assets and liabilies as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 measured &t fair value

As at 31 March 2024

{%In Crores}

Financial Agsets

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

At fair value through OCI

Investrnents

036

At fair value through profit or loss

Mutual Fund

12 56

Darivatives

00

Totat

12,92

9.01

{TIn Crores)

Fil ial liabilities

Level1

Level 2

Level 3

At fair value through profit or loss

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

Derivatives

Total

As at 31 March 2023

(¥ In Crores)

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Financial Assets
At fair value through OCI

Investments

34

Total

0.34

Financial liabilities

Level 1

Level 2

Leval 3

At fair value through profit or loss

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

Cerivatives

013

Tetal

0.13

Risk Management Framework

Acompany 18 axposed to uncertainties owning to the sector in which it is operating The Company is conscious of the fact that any risk that coul

¢ have a material impact on its business

shauld be included in 1ts nek profile. Accordingly, in ordsr to contain / mitigate the nsk. the Company has an approved a Risk management policy which is reviewed by the management from
The Company's Risk Management framework is designed to identify, assess and monitor vanous nsks related to key businass and strategic objactives and lead to the formulation of a
mitigation plan Major risks i partcular are monitored regularly at Exacutive meetings of the Campany to keep abreast of such issues and the Policy was reviewad by the Management.
The Campany's Management menitors compliance with the Company's nsk management policy and procedures, and reviews the adeguacy of the sk management framework in relation to
the risks faced by the Company The Management is assisted in its oversight role by Intemal Audit. Imernal Audit undertakes both regular and adhoc
procedures, the results of which are reported 1o the Management.

i. Credit Risk

review of fisk managemant cantrols and

Credil risk is the risk of financial foss lo company if a customer or counlerparty to the financial instrument fails to meet its financial obligations, and arises principally from the company's
Finarciai instrumants that are subject to concentrations of cradit risk principaily consist of trade recsivahles, cash and cash equivalents, other baiances with banks and other financial assets.
Nene af the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of credit risk other than trade receivabls

The company maintams its Cash and cash equivalents and Bank Depasits with banks haviny

eredit raling on a timely basis

The gross camying amount of trade recewvables is 41 58 Cr (31 March 2023 ¥ 28 05 Cr.)

During the period, the Company has written-off trade receivables Amounting to £ 9.00 Gr. The Com
based on ils internal assessment A default on a financial asset

pany’s management alse pursues all oplions for recovery of dues wherever necessary
is when courtarparty fails tc make payments within 365 days when they fall due

g good reputation, good past track record and high quality credit rating and also reviews their
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ii. Liguidity Risk
Liquidity nsk refers to nsk of financial distress or extra ordinary high financing cost anising due to shortage of iquid funds i a sduation where business condivons unexpectedly deteriorate
and require financing. The Company's objective is to mamtain at all times optimum lavels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements Processes and polictes related to such risk

are avaraeen by senior management and management monitors the Cormpany's net liquidity position through rolling forecast on the basis of expected cash fiows
(2) Financing Arrangements

Details of funding facilties are given below [T ln Crores)
Particulars Total facility] Drawn Un drawmn
Fund Basad Limit 3000 - 3000
Non Fund Based Limit 145 00 105 8¢ 3914
Total 175.00 105.86 §9.14

[b) Maturities of Financial Liabilities
The following are the remaining contractual matunbes of financial labiites at the reporing date The amounts are gross and undiscounted and excluding contractuat

interast payments and exclyde the impact of netting agr (¥ In Crores)
Garrying Ameunts Contractual cash flows
Particulars 31 March 2024 Total Upto 1 year Between 1and 2 | Between 2 and 5 [More than 5 year|
years years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Berawings (Vedanta Loan) 125 00 12500 - - 126 00 -
Bomowings- Bills Discounting 28 59 2859 2859 - - -
Trade payables 23598 23598 23598 - - -
Operational Buyers Cradit 928 928 9.28 - - -
Lease hakilites 515 515 1.27 - an 017
Denvatives - - - - - -
Other financial Labilities 26 43 2643 2643 - - -
Total non-derivative liabilities 430.43 430.43 .55 - 123.71 a7
Carrying Amounts Cantractual cash flows
Particulars 41 March 2023 Total Lipto 1 year Between1and 2 | Between 2 and 5 [More than 5 year
years years

Non-derivative fi tal fiabilities -
Bomowings (Vedania Loan 2203 2203 - 2203 - -
Borrowings (NCEC and Bills Discounting) 7216 7216 7218 - - -
Trade payables 18509 12508 185 08 - - -
Operational Buyers Credit 1268 12 68 1258 - - -
Lease habiities 017 017 - - - o017
Derivatives 013 013 013 - - -
Other fmancial hablifies 2333 2333 2333 - - -
Totaf non-derivative Fabilities 325.59 325.59 303.39 2203 - 0.17

iii, Market risk
Market nsk 1s the risk that changes in markat prces. foreign exchange rates and interest rates - wll affact the Company’s iIncome or the valus of its haldings of financial instruments The
objective of markel nsk management 1s to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return

a} Equity Price risk
The company doesn't have any of securties listed on any natonal or international stock exchange Hence, there is na Equity Price Risk

b) Currency Risk

Foreign currency nsk is the nsk that fair value of future cash flow of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates The Company's exposure to the nsk of changes
m foreign exchange rates relates pnmariiy ta the Company's operating activities The Campany has foreign currency trade payables and raceivables and is therefore, exposed io & foreign
exchange risk. Foreign currency risk anses from future commercial transactions and recognised assels and liabuhes denorminated in a currency that is nat the Company's functional
currency (INR) The risk 1s managed through a forecast of highly probable foraign curency cash flows

Exposure to currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Group's exposure ta currency nsk as reperted to the management of the Group 1s as follows

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

usp EUR uUsp EUR
Financial Asset
Trade Receivables 243500594 - 2,215 465 63 -
Derivative® 1,532 03
Net exposure to foreign currency risk(assets) 2,435,003.94 - 2,215,465.63 -
Trade Payables 6,760 25 - 2324536 72 1,235 38
Buyers Credit* 13 365 00 - 1,543,505 89 -
Derivative® - - 16,159 71 -
Bilis Chscounting** 1,133,104 13 - 2,635,793.25 -
Net statement of financial position exposure 1,153,249.38 - 6,529,995.58 1,239.38

* Buyer's Credit 8 Derivatives — Currency nsk 18 invalved n buyers credit. So, 1o mitigate the currency risk involved, we hedge through forwards contract for tha principle & interest.

“Bills Discounted — POSCO - Company has arrangement for 5% variable position that can be deducted by for quality issues. So, company take the Bills Discounting facility for
remaining 95% only to avoid the currency risk and alse for Glencore international AG.

Sensitivity analysis
A resonahly possible strengthening {weakemng) of the INR against ali other currencies at 31 March 2024 would have affected the measurement of fineneial instruments denominated in a
foreign currency and atfected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below This analysis assumes that all other vanabies, n particular interest rates, remain constant,

Profit or loss, net of tax Equity, net of tax
$Sirengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

31 March 2024

5% movement

usD 64.087 73 (64,087 73) 64,087 73 (64,087 73)
EUR - - - -

31 March 2023

5% movement

uso {215,726.50) 215,728.50 (215,726 50) 215,726 50

c) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate nsk is the nsk that the farr value or future cash flows of a finanaial ingtrarment will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates The Company constantly monitors the
creciit markets and rebalances s financing strategies lo achieve an opimal maturity profile and financing cost.

Following are the details of the Interest Rate for different Financing arrangements ;

\edanta's Loan fixed
Bills Discounted -1 Month SOFR+120 BPS Floating
Buyer's creciit-GMonth SOFR+100 BPS Floating

Non Convertibte Debantures fixed
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Sensitivity Analysis of Interest rate Risk

Floating rate financial assels arg largely mutual fund investments which have debt secuntiss as underlying assets. Tha returms from these financial assets are hnked to market inerest rate
mmovemants; however the counterparty invests in theagread secunties with known matunity tenure and retum and hence has manageable rsk.

The exp of the Company’s fi ial

Particuiars Tatal Floating rate Fixed rate Non-interest bearing
As at 31 March 2023

Financials assets 86 07 2202 1588 48 09
Financial liabilihes 325 58 22.20 34 34 269 05
As at 31 March 2024

Financials assels g2 01 12 58 38 11 4033
Financial labikti 43043 3787 12500 267 56

Intarest rate nsk is the nisk that the fair value of fulure cash flows of financial Instruments will flucluate because of changes in market interest rate

Censidering the net investment position as at 31 March 2024 and the nvestrment in bank deposits, bonds and debt mulual funds, any increase in interest rales increase and any decrease in
Interest rates would result would resull in a net in a net decrease The sensitvity analysis beiow has been determinad based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivative and non-
dervative instruments at the balance sheet date The bslow analysis gives the 'mpact of a @ 5% to 2 0% change n interest rates on floating rate financial assets/ liabilties (nal} on profitifioss)
and equity and represents management's assessment of the possible change in interast rates

d) Commodity Price Risk
Sale (HCFC) and Purchase (Coal Coke, Ore) of commodities - fluctuatiens involved and how campany hadge or maintain the nisk of fluctuations

46 Capital Management
The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard, maintain a strong credit ralicg and healthy capital ratios in order 1o suppertits busmess and provide adequate retum to
sharehalders through ¢ontinuing grawth TheCompary's overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year The Company sets the amount of cepital required onthe bass of annual
busmess and leng-tern operating pians which include caprial and othar strategic inveatments The funding requirements are met through a mixture of internal accruals, equrty and short term
bomowngs The Company monitors capital on the basis of net debt ta equity Equity comprises all components ncluding other compenents ofequity The Company 18 not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirement

{Z¥In Croveg)
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Particulars
Equit:

Cash and cash equivalants (Refer nota 12} 499 402
Shod terim investments 1258 =

Total cash fa) 1755 402
Total debt () 15874 94 36
Net debt {¢ = (b-a]} 14118 90.34
Total equity {equity + net debt) (Refer Statemant of 1,045.53 1,025.58
Net debt to equity ratio {gearing ratic) 0.4 0.08

47 Business Combination
The Hon'ble Natenal Company Law Tribunal (NGLT}, Cutlack Bench passed an order an ordsr on 15th November 2022 sanctioning the Scheme of Amalgamation of Facor Power limited
Subsidiary Campany., inta the Company, under section 230 & 232 of the Companies Act. 2013 The Scheme was effsctive on 22 November 2022, upon filing of the certified copy of the
WNCLT order with Registrar of Companes, Cuttack, Odisha
The Scheme of Amalgamatien be sanclioned by this Tnbunal {o be binding wrth effect from appoinied date which 1= 1 October 2020
The Board of Directors of the Company at it's meetng held an 19 April 2021 had approved he scheme of amzlgamatian of Facor Power Limited (fransferror Company) imo Fera Alloys

Corperation Limited {Transferee company) {Scheme of amalgamation) During the current year, Hon'ble National Company Law Tnbunal, Cuttack Bench vide ts Order dated 15 November
2022 approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of Facor Power Limited {("FPL’} into Fermo Alloys Corporation Limited {*FACOR")

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assels amalgamated and capital reserve are as follows
13,800 aquity shares having face value of Z 1 each worth ¥ 2,14,.278 ware issued as part of the considaration paid to minonity shareholders of Facor Power Limited with reference to schema
ot amalgamation

Below is the summary of the accounting treatment. which has been given effect fo in the financial statements pursuant to amalgamation of Facor Power Limited in accordance with the
pooling of inferest method as laid down by appendix C ta IND AS 103 Business combination of entities under comman controt

1) The Company has recorded all the assets and liabilites of Facor Power Limited at their respective book values as appearning in the books of Facor Power Limited as at the beginning of 01
Apnil 2021

1} The value of investment 1n equity share capital and preference share capital in the books of the Company has been cancsiled with the egury share capilal and preference share capital
appeanng in the books of Facor Powar Limited

) The difference between the valug of assets, liabilities and reserves of Facor Pawer Limited taken aver by the Company, the value of ir in the Company c: lled amounting to
¥ 230 D6 has been transferred to Capital reserves

(% In Crores}
Particulars Book Value of FACCH
Fower Ltd
Praperty, Plant & Equipment 468 86
Capial Wark-in-progress 9501
Investments ocn
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 1680
Other Non-Cument Assets 025
Inventories gi2
Trads Receivables 564
Cash & Cash Equivalents 48 95
Other Current Financiat Assets 038
Current Tax Assels [
Other Current Assets 580
Non-Current Borrowings (1,217 29)
Non-Cument Provisions (384)
Current Borrowings {8 32
Trade Payables (3 66}
Other Current Financial Liabilities {15 68)
Othar current Liabilities (16 48)
Other curent provisions w1y
Reserves 869 37
[Fecognised on appointed date 230.08
(€ In Crores}
Particulars Amount
Book value of Assels, Liability and Reserves a3
recognised on apponted date 23006
Less” Face value of equity shares issued {0 00)
Capital reserve 236.06

The difference of £ 230 07 Cr between the net value of assets, Labilities and reserves of the transferor company acquired and the sum of the face vaiue of new shares isswed and allotted
pursuant fo scheme of amalgamation and the carrying vaiue of investment of the Company in equity shares ¢f transferor Company baing cancelled has been transfemed fo capital reserva of
the Campany, as prescribed by the Scheme of amalgamation
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48 Audit Trail:-
The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a fealure of recording audit trail {edit Iog) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transachions recorded m the softwars axcept that audit trail feature is not enabled m the SAP application for direct changes to data m certain 1zbles, which is restricted to
certain 1D's with system adrinistratar user access 1n order to optimise system performance. However, these system administratar nghts have been disabled subsequent to the year end
Further no instance of audit irail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of software

4% Subsequent events
There are no other material adjusting or non-adjusting subsequent events, except as already disclosed

50 Other Statutory Information
Dataile of items of exceptional nature;
(i) Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Amalgamation

Where the Scheme of Amalgamation has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms af sections 230 o 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 the company shall disclose that the eHect
of such Scheme of Amangements have been accounted for in the baoks of account of the Campany in accordance with the Scheme' and in accordance with accounling standards’ and any
deviation in this regard shall be explained

The Horvble Naycnal Company Lew Tnbunal (NCLT), Cuttack Bench passed an crder an order on 15 Nevember 2022 sanctioning the Scheme of Amalgamation of Facor Power limited.
Substdiary Company, into the Company, under section 230 & 232 of the Companies Act, 2013

Scheme of Arrangemants have basn accounted for in the books of account of the Company i accordance wath the Scheme’ and in accordanca with accounting standards

(ii) Relationship with Struck off Companies
Where the company has any transactions with companies struck off under seclian 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 ths Company shall cisciose the following details, namely -

Nature of transactions Relationship with the Struck ofi
with struck off Comp company, if any, to be disclosed
- Investments in securities - -
- |Ra B B
- __|Payables - -
- __1Shares hald by stuck off co - -
- |Other outstanding balances N N

Narme of struck off Company Balance outstanding

(iii} Corporate Sorial Responsibility (CSR) {¥ In Crores)
The Company has incurred an amount of % 3 68 Cr (31 March 2023 £ 2 &7 Cr) towerds Corporate Social Responsibilty {CSR) as per Section 135 of the

The followmng shall be disclosed with regard to CSR activities -

(a) amount reguired 1o ba spent by the cornpany during the year, 349
tess 1/3 Excess CSR Expenses for FY 2021-22 ool
1/3 Excess CSR Expenses for FY 2022-23 Q08
113 Excess CSR Expenses for FY 2023-24 0.05

335

{b) amaunt of expenditure meurred*

Amount to be spant n CSR in FY 2023-24 15 ¥ 3 49 Cr (after takin

368

368 Cr

{c} Nature of CSR activities

Particulars. As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Educalion 043 033
Health 030 027
Infrastructure 207 111 )
WASH 047 080
Women Empowemeant 032 034
Cowd - -
Animal welfare 002 -
Admin & Cthers 008 022
Grand Total 3.68 287

(d) details of related parly transactions, e g contributian to a trust controlled by

the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Indian Accounting NA
Standard,

{e) whera a provision 1s made with respect 1o a lability incurred by antaring inlo

2 contractual obligation, the movemants in the provision duning the ysar shall No

be shown separately

0.33
g adjustment af 1/3rd Excess CSR spent for FY 2020-21,FY 2021-22 & 2022-23} Aclual CSR spentin FY 2023-24 was ¥
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(iv) Following Financial Ratios are disclosed

== vedania ( )

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 % Change| Reason
(8) Current Ratio{ In Times) 083 0.91 -8%
Debt Equity ratio has improved que to Payment of NCD and
(b) Debi-Equity Ratio (in Times) 0.42 0.32 29%|loan as compared to previous year.
The profits during the current year are sufficient to pay the
c) Bebt Service Coverage Ratio(In Times) 3.25 13.81 -76%|finance cost.
Due to decreased in profits and Equity @5 compared to the the
{d) Return on Equity Ratio (in %) 1.04 27 57 8% previous year, thereforelthe change in ratio by 93%.
(&) Inventory turnover ratio{ In Times) 7.63 7.82 -2%
During the current year, sales are majorly made on advance
Trade Receivables turnover ratiofln times) 1.54 0.57 1699 |basis, therefore higher in both net credit sales and average!
g) Trade payables turnover ratio{ In Times) 2.04 1.71 20%
h) Net capital turnover ratio{ In Times) -15.08 -28.67 -47%(*
Volume increased and profit decreased with better margin
i) Net profit ratio (in %) 2.57 3776 -93% |contributes towards better ratio.
ROCE tumns out to be lesser due to positive returns comes|
{}) Return on Capital employed( In %) 5.30 11.29 -53% |down and higher capital capital employed during the year.
ROI turns out to be lesser due to positive returns comes down
1.72 f ¢ .
{k) Return on investment (in %} 26.80 -a4%,[and higher capital capital employed during the year.
*Working capital is Negative.
Fermulae for computation of ratios is as follows
Particulars Numerator Denominator
(a) Current Ratio( In Times) Curent Assets Curent Liability
(&) Debt-Equity Ratio (in Times) Total Liability Sharehclders Fund
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio(In Times) Net Cperating Total Debt Service Cast
Income/ EBITDA
(d) Return on Eguity Ratio (in %) Net Earnings Shareholders Equity
{e) Inventory turnover ratio{ In Times) Turnover Average Inventory
(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio{ln times) | Net Credit Sales Average Account Receivables

g) Trade payables turnover ratio{ In Times)

Net Credit Purchases | Average Account Payables

(h) Net capital turnover ratio{ In Times)

Net Aanual Sales Werking Capital

(i) Net profit ratio (in %)

Net Profit after tax Revenug from operations

{j} Return on Capital employed( In %}

EBIT Capital Employed

(k) Return an investment {in %)}

Net Profit after tax Capital Empioyed

{v) The Company have not been declared a “Wilful Defaulter' by any bank or financial institution {as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in
accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.
(vi) The Company does not have any Benami properly and no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property,
under the Benami Transactions {Prohibitions} Act, 1988 (45 of 198B) and the rules made thereunder.

{vii) The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts

{viii} [n Current year, no revaluation has been done for Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
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